
Alan Wilson
Attorney General

November 20, 2019

Chris Noury, Esq.
North Myrtle Beach City Attorney
1018 Second Avenue South

North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582

Dear Mr. Noury:

We received your request seeking an opinion on whether a law enforcement agency from
South Carolina can enter into a mutual aid agreement with an out-of-state law enforcement
provider. This opinion sets out our Office's understanding of your question and our response.

Addendum November 20, 2019: This opinion is being reissued with a clarification at the
request of the South Carolina Sheriffs' Association. See Conclusion, infra.

Issue (as quoted from your letter):

Section 23-20-20(2) defines "law enforcement provider" as any in-state or out-of-
state (emphasis added) law enforcement authority that provides law enforcement
services to a law enforcement agency pursuant to the Chapter.

However, even though out-of-state law enforcement authorities are
referenced in the definitions section, the Act does not appear to provide additional
language or authority to authorize a law enforcement authority fi-om South
Carolina to enter into a mutual aid agreement with an out-of-state law
enforcement authority.

Section 23-20-30(A) provides in part "All agreements must adhere to the
requirements contained in Section 23-20-40." Section 23-20-40(B) provides
"Except as provided in subsection (C), a mutual aid agreement entered into on
behalf of a law enforcement authority must be approved by the appropriate
governing bodies of each concemed county, incorporated municipality, or other
political subdivision of this State''' (emphasis added).

The term "each" implies each party to the agreement must receive the
approval of the governing body of this State (i.e., the state of South Carolina). If
the above interpretation is true, [then] it appears that a law enforcement authority
from the state of South Carolina would be precluded fi-om entering into a mutual
aid agreement with an out-of-state law enforcement authority even though it
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